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Preston had a charter of Henry 11  in 1179 granting his burgesses all the liberties of    Newcastle-under-Lyme. 

The celebration of Preston Guild Merchant has been observed regularly every twenty years since 1542 except for an additional ten year interval due to the second world war.  But the right to hold a Guild merchant goes back to 1179 when Henry 11 conferred it by a charter, and valuable privileges embodied in that charter were confirmed successively by thirteen English monarchs.  Preston is unique in its manner of celebrating the grant of her burgesses’ freedom.  At one time the town made merry for a full six weeks for a Guild, the Mayor feasting everyone “rich and poor alike” at his own expense.

Prior to the 1972 Guild Merchant, “Scrolls of Friendship” to be signed by Prestonians “in exile” were circulated in twenty-four countries abroad; those in North America and       Australia were housed in “emblems”, beautifully carved replicas of the old Town Hall clock tower burned down in 1947.  Many charter flights were arranged by Prestonians “coming home” for the Guild of 1992.  The next Guild Merchant will be celebrated in 2012.

At the beginning of the week during which the Guild Merchant is held a Guild Court is held at which Freemen are admitted and also existing ones must apply to have their        freedom renewed.

The sons and daughters of Freemen are admitted as Freemen by right of birth at the Guild Merchant’s celebration.

At the last Guild merchant held in 1992, the number of old Burgesses renewing their     freedom was 350, and 458 new Burgesses were admitted.

At one time, Freemen had the right to graze cattle on the Council’s land without charge, but this has now lapsed, as have all the other special privileges and rights.

The hereditary right to be a Freeman extends to sons, and since 1992 also daughters of Freemen.

Preston has had a Charter granted which now confers borough status on the new District Council.  Under the provisions of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council therefore elects a Mayor and a Deputy Mayor.  Powers are granted under the Act for councils to appoint honorary Freemen, and Preston has honoured several of its most distinguished citizens in this manner.

The Borough covers the former County Borough of Preston and also the urban district of Fulwood and the parishes of Lea, Woodplumpton, Barton, Broughton, Haighton,       Goosnaigh, Wittingham and Grimsaigh in the former rural district of Preston.
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The Coat-of-Arms of the County Borough of Preston is briefly described as       follows :

The lamb is the lamb of St.Wilfred who is the Patron Saint of Preston.  The letters PP are taken to mean “Princeps Pacis”, or as some people would like it to be “Prince of Peace”

However, on earlier Coats-of Arms the Lamb was standing and three letters “P” were      depicted on it.
